# MEETING OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE FOR THE METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM (MTS) 1255 Imperial Avenue, Suite 1000 San Diego, CA 92101

October 11, 2012

#### **MINUTES**

### A. ROLL CALL

Chairman Mathis called the Executive Committee meeting to order at 9:02 a.m. A roll call sheet listing Executive Committee member attendance is attached.

### B. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Mr. Minto moved for approval of the minutes of the September 13, 2012, MTS Executive Committee meeting. Mr. Roberts seconded the motion, and the vote was 4 to 0 in favor with Mr. Young absent for the vote.

### C. COMMITTEE DISCUSSION ITEMS

### 1. Trolley Renewal Project Update

John Haggerty of the San Diego Association of Governments (SANDAG) gave the Executive Committee an update on the Trolley Renewal Project. He provided a status report on station construction for the Blue and Orange Line Improvement Corridor with a layout of the trolley stations that have been completed, are under construction, and planned construction. He talked about the budget and total expended dollars stating that 33% of the total budget has been expended. Mr. Haggerty talked about the project status in terms of design, construction, work completed, and work in progress. He provided photographs of low floor vehicles in operation at the Convention Center Station, Santa Fe Depot Station, Middletown Station and work in progress photographs of the County Center/Little Italy Station.

Mr. Haggerty talked about the work taking place at Orange Line stations. He provided photographs of station improvements at the Encanto/62<sup>nd</sup> Street Station, La Mesa Boulevard Station, 25<sup>th</sup> & Commercial Station, and 32<sup>nd</sup> Street & Commercial Station. He showed pictures of the platform improvements in progress at the Park & Market Station, 5<sup>th</sup> Avenue Station, and the City College Station. He then provided renderings of station shelter designs for bus and trolley berthing areas on the Blue Line station construction project going out for bid later this month.

Wayne Terry, Chief Operating Officer of Rail, stated that 44 of 65 new light rail vehicles have been delivered from the Siemens plant at this time with 5 currently in production.

### **Action Taken**

Mr. Roberts moved to receive a report for information. Mr. Minto seconded the motion, and the vote was 5 to 0 in favor.

### 2. East County Bus Maintenance Facility Project Update

Elliot Hurwitz, Manager of Capital Projects, provided the Committee with a report on the East County Bus Maintenance Facility project. He explained that the facility is located in the El Cajon Industrial Park near Johnson Avenue and Vernon Way, and that MTS contracts with Veolia Transportation who operates 82 diesel and gasoline buses. He stated that there is a short-term project which includes demolition of the old Vernon Way building on the existing site.

Mr. Hurwitz talked about the master plan which has been a joint effort with SANDAG, Kimley-Horn, and Parsons Brinckerhoff. The new facility will include a new maintenance and operations building, service lanes, bus wash, CNG fueling station, and will accommodate 120 buses. He talked about the design progression, provided details regarding the CNG station, and talked about a MOU with the City of El Cajon. He talked about the next steps and provided a schedule for completion. He then provided 3D renderings to show what the facility could look like upon completion.

### **Action Taken**

Mr. Minto moved to receive a report for information on the East County Bus Maintenance Facility. Mr. Ovrom seconded the motion, and the vote was 5 to 0 in favor.

### D. REVIEW OF DRAFT OCTOBER 18, 2012, BOARD AGENDA

#### Recommended Consent Items

### 6. State Lobbying Services Contract - Exercise Contract Option Year Two

Action would: (1) ratify MTS Doc. No. G1204.1-09 with Smith Watts & Company LLC for continued state lobbying services; and (2) authorize the CEO to execute MTS Doc. No. G1204.2-09 with Smith Watts & Company LLC to exercise option year two for state lobbying services.

### 7. Compass Card Risk Follow-up - Audit Report

Action would receive an internal audit report on Compass Card risk follow-up for information.

### 8. LRV Warranty Operations - Audit Report

Action would receive an internal audit consultative report on light rail vehicle (LRV) warranty operations

### 9. Follow-up Audit Reports - Status Updates

Action would receive internal audit reports as a status update on follow-up reviews.

### 10. Vehicle Advertising Services

Action would authorize the CEO to execute MTS Doc. No. G1140.2-08 with Michael-Allen & Associates for vehicle advertising services.

### 11. Hazardous Materials Disposal Services - Contract Award

Action would authorize the CEO to execute MTS Doc. No. G1474.0-12 with Environmental Logistics, Inc. for a five-year period to provide hazardous materials disposal services to San Diego Transit Corporation (SDTC) and San Diego Trolley, Inc. (SDTI).

### 12. Reallocated Transportation Development Act Funds for the La Mesa Village Trolley Access Improvements Project

Action would approve the use of Transportation Development Act (TDA) Article 4 funds currently held by the City of La Mesa for MTS's La Mesa Village Trolley Access Improvements Project.

### 13. Increased Authorization for Legal Services - Law Offices of Michael Ripley

Action would authorize the CEO to execute MTS Doc. No. G1428.1-12 with the Law Offices of Michael Ripley for current and future legal expenses throughout the remainder of FY 2013.

### 14. Federal Transit Administration 5316 Grant Applications

Action would adopt Resolution No. 12-14 authorizing the CEO to submit applications for federal fiscal year 2012 Job Access and Reverse Commute (JARC) funding.

### 15. Transmissions and In-Frame Engine Overhaul Services – Contract Award

Action would authorize the CEO to: (1) execute MTS Doc. No. B0592.0-13 with Harbor Diesel and Equipment, Inc. for the provision of transmission and in-frame engine overhaul services for Group II-Transmission Rebuilds for a three-year base period with 2 one-year options; and (2) exercise each option year at his discretion.

### 16. Federal Legislative Representation

Action would: (1) ratify the Chief Executive Officer's (CEO) approval of Amendment No. 4 to Task Order 5 of the San Diego Association of Governments' (SANDAG's) contract with Blank Rome Government Relations, LLP (MTS Doc. No. G0980.5-06/ Ref. SANDAG Contract No. 5000276), which assigned the remainder of the contract to Peyser Associates, LLC; and (2) authorize the CEO to execute Task Order 6 and Amendment No. 5 of the triagency contract with Peyser Associates, LLC effective November 1, 2012.

## 17. MTS Job Order Contract Work Order for Track Way Pavement Replacement on C Street

Action would authorize the CEO to execute Work Order No. MTSJOC1582-07 with Herzog Contracting (MTS Doc No. PWL134.0-12) to remove the existing asphalt paving and install new rubber rail interfacing boot along C Street.

### 18. Adoption of Amended 2012 Conflict of Interest Code

Action would: (1) adopt Resolution No. 12-15 amending the MTS Conflict of Interest Code pursuant to the Political Reform Act (PRA) of 1974; (2) adopt the amended 2012 MTS Conflict of Interest Code; and (3) forward the amended 2012 MTS Conflict of Interest Code to the County of San Diego (the designated code-reviewing body).

Mr. Jablonski commented that there was a late addition to the Board meeting, a discussion item will be presented regarding Greyhound.

### E. REVIEW OF SANDAG TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE AGENDA

There was no SANDAG Transportation Committee agenda discussion.

### F. COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMUNICATIONS AND OTHER BUSINESS

Mr. Minto commented that the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) is looking at placing a tower on the southwest corner of Cuyamaca Street and Marshall Avenue, near the Gillespie Field Trolley station. He explained that there have been some preliminary discussions about coordinating multimodal transportation in the area and the FAA would have to provide funding.

Mr. Young questioned whether there are plans in the near future for a more permanent Greyhound facility located near the 12<sup>th</sup> & Imperial Transit Center. Mr. Jablonski explained that Greyhound has a short-term lease and until regional long term plans are implemented the structure will remain as-is.

#### G. PUBLIC COMMENTS

There were no Public Comments.

### H. NEXT MEETING DATE

The next Executive Committee meeting is scheduled for November 8, 2012, at 9:00 a.m. in the Executive Committee Conference Room.

### ADJOURNMENT

Chairman Mathis adjourned the meeting at 10:12 a.m.

Chairman

Attachment: A. Roll Call Sheet

### **EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE**METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM

### **ROLL CALL**

MEETING OF (DATE) October 11, 2012	. (	CALL TO ORDER (TIME)	9:02 AM
RECESS	. F	RECONVENE	
CLOSED SESSION	F	RECONVENE	
	A	ADJOURN	10:12 AM
BOARD MEMBER (Alternate)		PRESENT (TIME ARRIVED)	ABSENT (TIME LEFT)
YOUNG 🗹 (Gloria)		9:05 AM	
MATHIS 🗹			
OVROM 🗹 (Bragg)			
ROBERTS ☑ (Cox)			
MINTO ☑ (Cunningham)			
Transportation Committee Rep Slot (Mathis)			
SIGNED BY THE CLERK OF THE BOARD: Valene Vizkeleti			
CONFIRMED BY THE GENERAL COUNSEL! WWW. (M.Q.			